

00001

1

2

CITY OF MILWAUKEE

3

LICENSES COMMITTEE

4

* * * * *

5

In the Matter of the Class "B" Tavern application for:

6

TAMARA M. NORWOOD-THOMAS
WOODLAND ENTERTAINMENT GROUP, LLC
"FRANK'S PLACE"
5950 N. 76th Street

7

8

9

* * * * *

10

COMMITTEE MEMBERS

11

ALD. JAMES WITKOWIAK - Chair
ALD. JAMES BOHL, JR., - Vice-Chairman
ALD. ROBERT PUENTE
ALD. WILLIE WADE
ALD. MICHAEL MCGEE

12

13

14

LICENSING DIVISION by REBECCA BARRON
NEIGHBORHOOD SERVICES by PANDORA BENDER
HEALTH DEPARTMENT by PAUL ZEMKE
POLICE DEPARTMENT by SEARGENT CHET ULICKEY
OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY by ATTORNEY BRUCE SCHRIMPF

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

Proceedings had and testimony given in
the above-entitled matter, before the LICENSES
COMMITTEE OF THE CITY OF MILWAUKEE, on
the 15th day of May, 2007.

00002

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

P R O C E E D I N G S

CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: In the 2nd District, Tamara Norwood-Thomas, Agent for "Woodland Entertainment Group, LLC", Class "B" Tavern application for "Frank's Place", 5950 North 76th Street.

Good morning.

THE APPLICANT: Good morning.

CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: Can you raise your right hand and we'll swear you in, please?

(Whereupon the Applicant was sworn.)

CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: Your name and address for the record, please?

THE APPLICANT: It's Tamara Norwood-Thomas. My address is 6520 West Carmen Avenue, Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53218.

CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: And state your appearance, please?

MR. BANGERT: David Bangert appears as attorney for Tamara Norwood-Thomas.

CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: Let the record show that Alderman Joe Davis appears in this matter, also. Good morning.

ALDERMAN DAVIS: Good morning.

CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: Ms. Norwood, do

00003

1 you admit to receiving notice in the mail there's
2 a possibility your application could be denied
3 because of items contained on the police report
4 and neighborhood objections to loitering,
5 littering, loud music, noise, parking, traffic
6 problems, cruising, drug and criminal activities,
7 increased capacity will cause increase in
8 neighborhood problems, and conduct detrimental to
9 the health, safety and welfare of the
10 neighborhood?

11 THE APPLICANT: Yes, I do.

12 CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: Okay.

13 Neighborhood Services?

14 DNS: Neighborhood Services would like
15 to hold for occupancy. I would also like to read
16 into the record the order that was issued on this
17 property.

18 CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: Go ahead.

19 DNS: Ah, 200-26-1. The intended
20 occupancy of this building requires significant
21 evaluation and alterations. The evaluation
22 must be made by a professional designer or a
23 Wisconsin registered architect or engineer who
24 must submit plans and obtain permits for the
25 alterations. The areas to be evaluated as part

00004

1 of this plan submission include the class of
2 the building construction, ADA requirements,
3 existing requirements, fire protection, system fire
4 alarm, smoke detectors, sprinkler system,
5 restaurant requirements, occupancy or use
6 separation, isolation of hazards and building
7 ventilation system. Occupancy is a
8 restaurant/bar.

9 CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: Thank you. Health
10 Department?

11 HEALTH DEPARTMENT: Health Department
12 needs an inspection of the premises and plans to
13 be submitted for any construction or remodeling.

14 CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: Sergeant Ulickey,
15 the police report, please?

16 SERGEANT ULICKEY: The applicant has
17 nothing in the previous five years. She does
18 have a conviction from 1995.

19 CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: Thank you. Before
20 we get stated here. Just tell us what your plan
21 is. Give us an opening - - Give us an overview
22 here.

23 MR. BANGERT: Well, I'll give a brief
24 summary and then certainly Mr. Norwood-Thomas can
25 expand on that if I leave something out.

00005

1 It's my understanding that - - that Ms.
2 Norwood-Thomas' primary plan is for a sit-down
3 restaurant. This - - The building had for, I
4 believe, 32 years had been Jimbo's Pizza
5 operating in that location. Apparently, I asked
6 this morning when Jimbo's had closed, and
7 apparently it was like September of 2006. Ms.
8 Norwood-Thomas entered into a lease starting in
9 November. I've only had an opportunity to - - to
10 work with Ms. Norwood-Thomas over the past few
11 days, and it was apparent to me right away that
12 there was some probably over-optimism, but also,
13 some confusion on her part in submitting her
14 initial application. She tells me right now that
15 the - - that the inspections and the plans that
16 need to be approved from the building inspection
17 department pertain primarily to a side room that
18 she initially had plans to - - and maybe in the
19 long run, future, she still would have plans to
20 open a banquet type room on that side. But those
21 plans are not feasible at the present time, and
22 she's - - she's kind of put those aside. And
23 part of the confusion, I think, on her
24 application, Ms. Norwood-Thomas indicated that
25 she had plans for, aside from the sit-down

00006

1 restaurant, for a billiards license. She checked
2 that off, and also, a dance or cabaret permit.

3 THE APPLICANT: Not a cabaret.

4 MR. BANGERT: Not a cabaret, just
5 dance.

6 THE APPLICANT: The tavern/dance.

7 MR. BANGERT: Okay. She submitted a
8 letter, and I don't know if that's been clarified
9 now with the application, but she submitted a
10 letter to the City dated March 8th, 2007, where
11 she indicated that she was requesting the removal
12 of the tavern/dance and the billiard hall part of
13 the application. Her primary purpose is she
14 wants to have a sit-down restaurant. There is a
15 side room that is a bar area that it's my
16 understanding seats eight to ten people at the
17 bar. Her intention is that the bar would be
18 simply a secondary adjunct to the - - the dining
19 facility. That the dining is intended to be
20 casual dining. She showed me a menu. It's
21 appetizers, salads, wings, sandwiches.

22 THE APPLICANT: Desserts. Items like
23 that. So we have a full menu for a restaurant.
24 And that's pretty much it.

25 MR. BANGERT: Yeah, I think that that's

00007

1 - - That's a summary of the plans. Now she, in
2 terms of any further expansion or operating of a
3 - - the banquet facility, that is no longer in
4 her plans, even though the lease of the area
5 encompasses that room. But she just - - She
6 doesn't have the financial ability to develop
7 that at the present time, and - - and just would
8 like the opportunity to try to make a go as a - -
9 as a dining facility, a small restaurant.

10 CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: Thank you. Can I
11 just see a show of hands? Is there anyone here
12 from the neighborhood to testify relative to 5950
13 North 76th? Okay. All right. Out of all you
14 people now that raised your hands, how many
15 people are here to testify against? Okay. And
16 before we invite these people up to testify, I
17 just want to hear some opening comments from
18 Alderman Joe Davis.

19 ALDERMAN DAVIS: Thank you, Mr.
20 Chairman, members of the committee. Just as my
21 due diligence, Ms. Norwood actually contacted my
22 office and we arranged three community meetings.
23 Havenswood Economic Development Corporation is
24 here represented by Stephanie Harling. Grantosa
25 Heights Neighborhood Association is here

00008

1 represented by the Block Club Captain Dawn Baker.
2 And then the 75th Street Block Club is here
3 represented by Claudette Holloway. We had three
4 meetings. I gave an opportunity as a invitee to
5 that meeting to extend an invitation to Ms.
6 Norwood, and at all three meetings that I
7 attended the question was asked, after she
8 presented what her operations was, and - - and,
9 Mr. Chair and members of the committee, she did
10 reveal that her intentions was a Class "B"
11 tavern/dance license along with a billiard hall.
12 That's what she submitted to the comm - - to the
13 community. And the community had some concerns
14 about the increase in capacity, and you will hear
15 in testimony from neighbors in the area, along
16 with the primary use of this property was a bar,
17 and not a restaurant. I have not received a menu
18 from Ms. Norwood on the restaurant. And only
19 until after the community meetings did she
20 rescind on that particular - - when she received
21 neighborhood objections and - - and rescinded
22 that request.

23 The interesting thing about this, Mr.
24 Chair, is that this particular establishment has
25 limited parking. Right next to it is a strip

00009

1 mall, and I had indicated to Ms. Norwood in - -
2 in previous times that who would be responsible
3 of the litter - - littering, loitering and also,
4 some of the behavior in the property adjacent to
5 the establishment, since this used to be a
6 restaurant. And clearly, she had indicated that
7 the change would actually not - - not be a
8 restaurant, but actually, be a bar. The
9 neighbors were concerned about it actually, the
10 change of use, it's primary source being a bar
11 instead of a restaurant.

12 The last thing, Mr. Chairman and member
13 of the committee, is that I'd like to submit to
14 the committee some questions that I do have, and
15 I can raise them either now or later. But
16 Woodland - - through the Wisconsin Department of
17 Financial Institutions under Woodland
18 Entertainment Group, there is some confusion
19 about who is the listed agent on this particular
20 application. Because it is two different names,
21 and what is filed with the City of Milwaukee
22 Licensing Division, and also, what has been
23 submitted to the committee. And I guess my
24 question would be is that who is the registered
25 agent, so that if, in fact, the committee does

00010

1 move forward with, I have a clear understanding
2 of who is who, and - - and, you know, who would
3 be the registered agent. And with that, I would
4 hope that the Chairman would allow me to make
5 some closing remarks afterwards.

6 CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: Thank you.
7 Alderman Bohl moves to make this printout from
8 the Wisconsin Department of Financial
9 Institutions part of the permanent in this
10 hearing. And hearing no objections, so ordered.

11 ALDERMAN WADE: Mr. Chair.

12 CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: Alderman Wade.

13 ALDERMAN WADE: Alderman Davis.

14 ALDERMAN DAVIS: Yes.

15 ALDERMAN WADE: During your
16 correspondence with the applicant, did - - did
17 the question about the bar and dance and - - and
18 all of those things, those issues came up and - -
19 and you expressed to her exactly what your
20 feelings were about that?

21 ALDERMAN DAVIS: That's correct.

22 ALDERMAN WADE: Is that - - Is that
23 what happened?

24 ALDERMAN DAVIS: That's correct.

25 ALDERMAN WADE: And - - And when you

00011

1 expressed what your feelings were, was she
2 amenable to that or no?

3 ALDERMAN DAVIS: No. Actually, what
4 she - - And you will hear from neighborhood
5 community members is that she indicated that she
6 wouldn't move forward if, in fact, she didn't
7 have neighborhood support. But now we find
8 ourselves at the licensing committee. We made it
9 very clear at that meeting discussing with Ms.
10 Norwood and also the community, that my position
11 would be to represent the neighborhood. And
12 that's the reason why I put it to the
13 neighborhood at all of these meetings. Do they
14 support this, based upon the information that was
15 supplied. And it was overwhelmingly that they
16 did not support the use of that particular piece
17 of property. And - - And I - - You know, I - -
18 We've worked very hard to get a business
19 improvement district in that area, Alderman Wade,
20 also Economic Development Corporation in that
21 area. Based upon the Northwest plan, the
22 comprehensive plan. so this is the reason why
23 we're apprehensive about supporting this
24 particular use at that location.

25 ALDERMAN WADE: Now, when you - - when

00012

1 you discussed the use that you would be, you
2 know, satisfied with, that use was never
3 presented to the community as a whole as an
4 option? Is - - Is that what I'm hearing?

5 ALDERMAN DAVIS: No. I never did
6 discuss what use I would be supportive as,
7 because I didn't want to get into that gray area.

8 ALDERMAN WADE: Um-hnh.

9 ALDERMAN DAVIS: I stuck to what the
10 issue was before me and what she had filed. And
11 also, what was noticed to the public, and that
12 was a Class "B" tavern/dance license with a
13 billiard hall and - - and possibly a meeting
14 space or a banquet hall.

15 ALDERMAN WADE: And the reason why I
16 asked that, I just want to make sure that what
17 we're talking about was discussed with the
18 community, but from what I'm hearing, what was
19 discussed with the community and what's being
20 discussed here seems to be kind of two different
21 things, based on removal of some of those
22 requests from the application. That's what I'm
23 kind of hearing. I just want to make sure that
24 I'm, you know, judging the right thing.

25 ALDERMAN DAVIS: That's correct.

00013

1 ALDERMAN WADE: All right.

2 ALDERMAN DAVIS: And - - But I do have
3 to say, Alderman Wade, that I did receive her
4 request to remove those in a March 8th, I think,
5 document that she forwarded to the Licensing
6 Committee to remove those particular items. But
7 the community had already met with Mrs. Norwood
8 at the time.

9 ALDERMAN WADE: All right. Thank you.

10 CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: Before I proceed,
11 I just have a couple questions for Ms. Barron.
12 Is there a license in this place now?

13 MS. BARRON: No, there's no current
14 license at this location.

15 CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: There's no current
16 license. Okay. Was it - - Was it licensed in
17 the past?

18 MS. BARRON: Yes.

19 CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: How long ago?

20 MS. BARRON: As Jimbo's Pizza? Let me
21 check. I just wanted to state that the only
22 license that's before you right now is the Class
23 "B" tavern. There is no longer the billiard hall
24 or the tavern/dance. But the banquet hall
25 portion was not removed. That is still part of

00014

1 the application.

2 CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: And to the
3 applicant. How many square feet is the premises?

4 THE APPLICANT: Total, it's 8,000 for
5 both - - all three parts. The building was - -
6 was originally divided into three different
7 stores. Jimbo's is two pieces of that store.
8 This other side used to be a print shop. And
9 that would be the side that possibly at some
10 point or another could possibly be a banquet
11 hall. We've always wanted it to be a sit-down
12 restaurant with the bar. Jimbo made a beautiful
13 blueprint and has left it that way. And we are
14 very content with that blueprint. We never
15 intended it for - - for it to be a bar only, a
16 tavern only, or a nightclub only. We've always
17 wanted it to be a sit-down casual restaurant.
18 Just not a pizza parlor as Jimbo's had previously
19 had. We do have a full menu with appetizers,
20 salads, sandwiches, deserts and everything else.

21 CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: Thank you. And,
22 DNS, do you have anything about capacity on this
23 place or?

24 DNS: This building originally was a
25 restaurant. Restaurants at one time were not

00015

1 required to have capacity.

2 CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: Okay.

3 MS. BARRON: Mr. Chair.

4 CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: Ms. Barron.

5 MS. BARRON: The previous license

6 expired on July 5th, 2006.

7 CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: Okay. Thank you.

8 All right. Everybody that's here to testify from

9 the neighborhood, raise your right hands. We're

10 going to swear you all in at the same time. If

11 you don't raise your right hands now, and then

12 you can't testify. Okay. Keep your right hands

13 up.

14 (Whereupon the witnesses were sworn.)

15 CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: Say, I do. All

16 right. Thank you. The people that want to

17 testify in opposition to this license, please

18 come one at a time to this microphone here. If

19 you heard my instructions before, try to stick to

20 the subject matter that - - that this is notice

21 for neighborhood objections. Try not to get off

22 onto tangents. Don't use any hearsay. It's just

23 your personal information, your personal

24 testimony that you want to give. And after you

25 state your name and address, tell us how far away

00016

1 you live from this location, and you may wish to
2 add how long you've lived there. Don't all rush
3 up there at once. We have our first taker here.
4 Name and address for the record.

5 THE WITNESS: Robert Baker. 5875 North
6 77th Street. I live a block and a half away.

7 CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: Thank you, Mr.
8 Baker. And your testimony.

9 THE WITNESS: We met with Mrs. Norwood
10 through the block watch, and at that time her - -
11 her whole thing was to have a bar. She wanted to
12 serve people from 21 and up. Stay open until
13 1:30, two o'clock, which was unknown to everybody
14 at the meeting. She also stated that her
15 intentions were to open what used to - -
16 originally was Steve's Bike Shop and went to the
17 print shop, as the banquet hall, pool hall. And
18 it was also pointed out at the time that there
19 was no restroom facilities at Jimbo's on the
20 upper level for a bar, restaurant. You had to
21 walk downstairs. And just by hearing the changes
22 from today, during our discussion we also talked
23 about the banquet hall, and the banquet hall,
24 there was no room for it. So now it appears that
25 it's going downstairs near the bathroom. There

00017

1 is no restroom facilities, there's no parking in
2 this neighborhood for this. And another thing,
3 she had a verbal agreement with the people next
4 door for parking, but there's no way to secure
5 that. There's no cameras. She would have to put
6 cameras out there. This is the wrong location.
7 There's other places in the neighborhood that she
8 can go to that would benefit the neighborhood
9 more.

10 And to the south of her we have a strip
11 mall that has - - where she plans to use the
12 parking, is also a - - a restaurant there. Not a
13 sit-down restaurant, though. It's a walk up,
14 walk in type deal, which suits the neighbors,
15 because we don't have people hanging around.

16 VICE-CHAIRMAN BOHL: Thank you, Mr.
17 Baker. If you would hold on one second here.

18 Are there questions by committee of Mr. Baker?

19 ALDERMAN PUENTE: Mr. Chair.

20 VICE-CHAIRMAN BOHL: Alderman Puente.

21 ALDERMAN PUENTE: Even with her change
22 of operation, moving the dance license, you're
23 still in opposition?

24 THE WITNESS: I'm still in opposition.

25 ALDERMAN PUENTE: Thank you.

00018

1 VICE-CHAIRMAN BOHL: Other questions by
2 committee? Mr. Baker, hold on one second. Mr.
3 Baker, if you could just go back. Mr. Bangert,
4 anything from you?

5 THE WITNESS: Baker. B-A-K-E-R.

6 VICE-CHAIRMAN BOHL: No. The attorney
7 is Bangert. I was asking if he had questions of
8 you.

9 MR. BANGERT: No, I don't have any
10 questions for Mr. Baker.

11 VICE-CHAIRMAN BOHL: Thank you, sir.
12 Next witness?

13 THE WITNESS: Hi, I'm Dawn Baker. I
14 live at 5875 North 77th Street. I'm a block and
15 a half away from Jimbo's. I'm also the block
16 watch captain of the Grantosa Heights Block Watch
17 Neighborhood Association. We really don't want
18 this in our neighborhood. There isn't a secured
19 parking place for this establishment. She's got
20 a verbal agreement with the strip mall owner. If
21 the strip mall owner would renege on his verbal
22 agreement, our neighborhood would become the
23 parking lot for this restaurant/bar. Staying
24 open until 1:30 in the morning, it would be,
25 indeed, a bar. We're a very quiet neighborhood.

00019

1 Once KFC closes, the mall closes, ten o'clock,
2 it's quiet. We'd like to maintain that in our
3 neighborhood. We have many problems in our City
4 right now with cruising. I can imagine - - 76th
5 Street would be a great place to cruise. We got
6 a lot of nooks and crannies up in that area,
7 excuse me. But it would. And we've had our
8 stint with cruising when H2O was in the area.

9 So, I represent about 40 people from my
10 neighborhood, who all object. She's been told by
11 about 60 people, "no". She told us that she
12 would have the neighborhood's best interest at
13 heart, but she's been told by 60 people it isn't.
14 So it looks like her best interest is her
15 interest and not our neighborhood interest. So I
16 would plead with you people not to allow her to
17 be licensed. Thank you.

18 VICE-CHAIRMAN BOHL: Ms. Baker, you're
19 going to have to hold on. All the witnesses,
20 until we dismiss you, we do have the ability to
21 have the committee ask questions. So we'll ask
22 you just to continue to stay there until - - Are
23 there questions by committee of Ms. Baker?

24 ALDERMAN PUENTE: Mr. Chair.

25 VICE-CHAIRMAN BOHL: Alderman Puente.

00020

1 ALDERMAN PUENTE: Same question I asked
2 your husband.
3 THE WITNESS: Absolutely. No.
4 ALDERMAN PUENTE: All right. Thank
5 you.
6 VICE-CHAIRMAN BOHL: Other questions by
7 committee? Mr. Bangert?
8 MR. BANGERT: No. No questions.
9 VICE-CHAIRMAN BOHL: Okay. Thank you.
10 THE WITNESS: Thank you.
11 VICE-CHAIRMAN BOHL: Next witness,
12 please. And if we could - - If we could, as
13 well, just - - There's - - There are a couple
14 seats in front. If maybe one or two people can
15 just kind of get in an orderly procession, as
16 well, too. Ma'am, thank you. Your - - Your name
17 and your address for the record.
18 THE WITNESS: My name is Juliette
19 Morris. My address is 5939 North 79th Street.
20 Three blocks away.
21 VICE-CHAIRMAN BOHL: Thank you. Ms.
22 Morris, please proceed.
23 THE WITNESS: Okay. When I first met
24 Ms. Norwood, she came to the meeting. She spoke
25 to us regarding her little plan that she wanted.

00021

1 She showed us her layout. And she consistently
2 said that there was going to be a restaurant, a
3 bar, and she going to have two pool tables,
4 because that's all the room she had. And she
5 wanted to try to build a base - - a bathroom in
6 the basement. She got to redo the stairs,
7 because they was rotted out. And she said
8 something about this banquet hall that she wanted
9 to put in the back room. It's not going to go.
10 Because when I spoke up at the meeting, I said
11 that I did not want a tavern, you know. I'm 43
12 years old, and a 19 year old is like this on me.
13 And cruising down the street left and right, you
14 know, it's - - it's not going - - I got a 11 year
15 old little boy, and I don't want him to be around
16 that type of stuff, you know. It's nice that
17 she's trying to open up a business for young
18 kids. That's what she said it was going to be, a
19 crowd of young kids. But she's not going to be
20 able to maintain these young kids. I know that.
21 I stay right behind the school. And she's not
22 going to be able to maintain it. I know.
23 I asked her about the parking. She
24 said she was going to go out there and she was
25 going to make sure they - - they be parking in

00022

1 the right space. It's not enough room.
2 Littering. Oh, we going to have some security.
3 And we going to go out there and pick up trash.
4 It's not going to happen. It's not going to
5 happen.

6 VICE-CHAIRMAN BOHL: Thank you.
7 Questions by committee of Ms. Morris?

8 ALDERMAN PUENTE: Ma'am, the same
9 question I asked previously with the change of
10 operations that she is dropping the dance
11 license, does that change your opinion in any
12 way?

13 THE WITNESS: No, sir.

14 ALDERMAN PUENTE: All right. Thank
15 you.

16 VICE-CHAIRMAN BOHL: Other questions by
17 committee? Mr. Bangert?

18 MR. BANGERT: I'd just like to ask - -
19 I know you've repeated that, in your opinion,
20 it's not going to happen in terms of the clean-up
21 that - - that Ms. Norwood has promised, and the
22 security, and those types of things. But why do
23 you - - Why is that your strong opinion, that she
24 isn't going to follow through on that?

25 THE WITNESS: Because - - Okay.

00023

1 Because when Pick 'N Save came in, down the
2 street was, 190 something, and Silver Spring.
3 Before they came in, they stated that it was
4 going to be clean, and a nice neighborhood. We
5 got shopping carts way down the street, on 76th.
6 Pick 'N Save. You know, bags everywhere. So
7 it's - - It's not going to work, you know.

8 VICE-CHAIRMAN BOHL: Mr. Bangert,
9 you're going to have to use the microphone,
10 because I'm going to call you on that right away.

11 MR. BANGERT: All right.

12 VICE-CHAIRMAN BOHL: And you addressed
13 your question to the committee, and then she can
14 respond to that. As opposed to her.

15 MR. BANGERT: Would it make a
16 difference in your - - just for your own personal
17 opinion, if you could somehow be satisfied that
18 the parking that seems to be a concern of many of
19 the neighbors, if the parking was shown to not be
20 a problem, if there was a feasible plan for the
21 parking? Would that make a difference, do you
22 feel, in your opinion?

23 THE WITNESS: Not really. Only if the
24 - - Probably if the location was someplace else
25 with bigger parking, yes, it would be fine. But

00024

1 that's a very small area. There's traffic. You
2 got two day cares, you know. Right now, since
3 they're doing construction, they's speeding
4 around the day care. They're going into the day
5 care parking lot, going around. So if - - Just
6 imagine if her bar was there, open, it's two
7 o'clock at night, what you going to see? You
8 going to see traffic going in and out of that
9 little parking area where little restaurant - -
10 her restaurant, and all these other little
11 stores, and you going to see - - It just going to
12 be high traffic. It's going to be everywhere.
13 Everywhere. So, no.

14 VICE-CHAIRMAN BOHL: Any other
15 questions?

16 MR. BANGERT: No.

17 VICE-CHAIRMAN BOHL: Thank you, Ms.
18 Morris.

19 THE WITNESS: You're welcome.

20 VICE-CHAIRMAN BOHL: Next witness,
21 please.

22 THE WITNESS: My name is - - My name is
23 Stephanie Harling. I represent Business
24 Improvement District and Havenwoods Economic
25 Development Corporation. So I come from this - -

00025

1 from a different perspective. I think this is
2 bigger than "not in my backyard". This is about
3 planning, and - - and economic structuring for
4 our North 76th retail district. And currently,
5 we're undergoing, not only the comprehensive
6 Northwest side plan, but also, an overlay zone,
7 so that we'll have more controls and have more
8 freedom to choose what businesses come in.

9 So my first plea to you is to take a
10 step back, and revisit the proposal as a
11 restaurant before you approve this today.
12 Because from a business perspective we haven't
13 seen a business plan. We haven't seen whether
14 this individual is even capable of running a
15 restaurant successfully. And maybe that's not a
16 criteria for licensing, but it's certainly a
17 criteria for the business people and the
18 neighborhood around us. So I would ask that you
19 put - - that we revisit this as a restaurant
20 proposal instead of a bar proposal if that is,
21 indeed, what Ms. Norwood wants to do.

22 The other thing is a matter of public
23 trust. There appears to be very little with
24 regard to what appears to be a last minute
25 switch, the way she wants to operate the business

00026

1 without any review on the menu, who she's going
2 to attract, how she's going to handle the
3 restaurant business. There's just a lot - - Now
4 it's a whole new ballgame. And nobody knows.
5 Now there's even more uncertainties than there
6 were - - than with the tavern license. So while
7 this may be in some people's view a - -
8 (Microphone noise.) Am I being beeped off? Am I
9 being gonged?

10 While this may be in some people's view
11 a - - a good thing that she's switching, but on
12 the other hand, it - - it opens up a whole other
13 series of questions that have to be responded to.
14 And based on my experience in working in economic
15 development and non-profits, running a restaurant
16 is hard, hard work. And it requires a lot of
17 know-how and a lot of experience, and right now,
18 I don't see any of that being presented.

19 CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: Thank you. Any
20 questions of this witness? Questions by?

21 MR. BANGERT: No.

22 CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: Thank you for your
23 testimony. Next witness, please.

24 THE WITNESS: My name is Claudette
25 Holloway. I'm President of the Common Circle

00027

1 Block Club, which encompasses the area of 76th
2 and Florist, to 73rd and Florist. Then going
3 south to Silver Spring. I am one of the
4 presidents. We combined and we all work
5 together. We had a meeting - -

6 CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: Your address,
7 please.

8 THE WITNESS: 5837 North 75th Street.
9 CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: And how close do
10 you live to this premises?

11 THE WITNESS: About two blocks.

12 CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: And just with all
13 due respect, you can't comment on what the - -
14 You can't use any hearsay.

15 THE WITNESS: Okay.

16 CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: Can't comment on
17 what other people - -

18 THE WITNESS: Well, some of the other
19 presidents are here, also. So they'll speak for
20 themselves.

21 CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: They can testify
22 for themselves.

23 THE WITNESS: Also, my family has lived
24 in this area for over 40 years. My father lived
25 there prior to me. We were involved with

00028

1 cruising. We know what it's like. We've had the
2 bars. At that time Alderman Bohl was our
3 alderman. Since we've had Alderman Davis, we've
4 had problems. Before Alderman Davis, I can't
5 think of the previous Alderman's name before
6 Davis. He moved. We let them know when we have
7 problems. We do block clean-ups. We look at the
8 areas within our neighborhood. We - - Well, I'll
9 say I went to look at her home. If we had a
10 corporation, we would be on her, if she lived in
11 our area.

12 So she was telling us that she was
13 going to be an asset to our neighborhood, and
14 telling us that she's a part of our neighborhood.
15 If she's a part - - If her home is a
16 representation of what we're going to get when
17 she has the bar, I can definitely say I'm against
18 it. Also, the fact that she stood up and told us
19 she didn't care how we felt about it. We have a
20 right to let her know. That's why we wanted her
21 there. And then you're going to let us say it
22 doesn't mean anything, what we're saying or how
23 we feel. And then at the last minute to change
24 everything after you stood there and told us this
25 is exactly what I'm going to do. She called me

00029

1 on the phone previously. Why couldn't she call
2 me when she changed. And maybe we could have had
3 another meeting.

4 CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: Thank you for your
5 testimony. Any questions from the committee?
6 Any questions, counselor, of this witness?

7 MR. BANGERT: No.

8 CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: Thank you for your
9 testimony, ma'am. Next witness, please. Name
10 and address for the record, please.

11 THE WITNESS: Good morning. Nanette
12 Alexander, 5719 North 75th Street. I stay two
13 blocks from previously Jimbo's.

14 CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: Okay.

15 THE WITNESS: My feelings for her
16 having this tavern. I don't want it, not at all.
17 My main reason is at that neighborhood meeting
18 she changed her mind, said different things at
19 the meeting. Then we get down here, she done
20 changed it again. My feelings is how trustworthy
21 is she. How can we believe anything she say when
22 she changes whenever she feels like it. We've
23 been through, like Ms. Holloway say, I've been
24 down here for the cruising. I come down here to
25 fight for my neighborhood. And for someone to

00030

1 come in, we got, you know, we got businesses, two
2 day care centers. We have that gas station over
3 there, when they leave the taverns or what have
4 you, they're at the filling station. Nothing but
5 noise. And I can look out my window and look at
6 the filling station. We fought for no cruising.
7 Now here it might come back again. No. I don't
8 think she can be trusted, and that's my personal
9 feelings.

10 CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: Thank you. Any
11 questions of this witness? Counselor, any
12 questions of this - -

13 MR. BANGERT: No. No questions.

14 CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: Thank you for your
15 testimony. Next person, please?

16 THE WITNESS: Hi. My name is Kelly
17 Fikes, that's F-I-K-E-S. My address is 5957
18 North 75th Street. I live right behind Jimbo's.
19 At the meeting she did say it was going to be a
20 dance hall. She did say a tavern. She did say
21 that she was going to attempt to have security.
22 We do not want a tavern in the neighborhood. We
23 have a nice - - nice neighborhood. Our children
24 play with each other. There's a alley. An
25 alley. I'm right on the alley. If she had a

00031

1 tavern there, near there until 1:30 or two in the
2 morning, I won't be able to get out the alley,
3 because I'm pretty sure there's going to be
4 people in the alley. People on the side. The
5 cruisers would go straight - - I live right here.
6 Those cruisers go straight up and down the alley.
7 You hear all the loud noise, the loud music. I
8 want to get my rest. Go to work. Take care of
9 my family. Speak with my neighbors. And go home
10 and don't have to worry about someone in the
11 alley going to attempt to attack me, or my family
12 members. There's a lot of the neighborhood kids
13 that I know walk up and down the alley. I sit
14 out there. They wave to me, and I wave to them.
15 A safety issue. Our children should be able to
16 walk anywhere in that neighborhood and don't have
17 any insecurity that something's going to happen
18 to them, because someone left that tavern at the
19 wrong time in the wrong frame of mind and
20 something happens to them.

21 So I want safety. I want - - I've been
22 there eight years, and I love that neighborhood.
23 Everyone in that neighborhood is friendly to me.
24 The day cares, one of the day cares stay open 24
25 hours, and my son attended day care in that

00032

1 neighborhood. So, no, we do not want this. And
2 like I say she has changed what she said
3 previously.

4 CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: Thank you for your
5 testimony. Questions of this witness?
6 Counselor, any questions?

7 MR. BANGERT: No. No questions for
8 her.

9 CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: Thank you. Next
10 person to testify, please.

11
12 THE WITNESS: Leonard Reef, 7624 West
13 Bobolink Avenue. I live approximately a block
14 away from Jimbo's. My primary objective is the
15 part - - the bar part of it, and the secondary is
16 the - - the parking. There's two - - There's two
17 - - It's true there's two day cares across the
18 street, and my neighbor right next door to me
19 just opened up her day care, and her day care is
20 actually open until 8:30, so the bar part of it's
21 got a real concern for me, as well as the
22 parking, so.

23 CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: Thank you. Thank
24 you. Any questions of this witness? Counselor,
25 any questions?

00033

1 MR. BANGERT: No, I don't believe so.

2 CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: Next witness,

3 please

4 THE WITNESS: Good morning. My name is
5 Tom Burger. I own a business that's just
6 directly north of the premises that's in
7 question. And I have - - I'm sorry. The address
8 is 7525 West Florist Avenue.

9 CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: Okay. Thank you.

10 THE WITNESS: And I've been there for
11 35 years. And I have seen the neighborhood, how
12 it used to be, how it's gotten, and I want it to
13 be strong, just like the people that came up here
14 to this microphone and spoke. I just have to
15 make one comment towards you. I realize that our
16 neighborhood was good. I've been there holding
17 it together. I hope you people - - It's right
18 here. I'm speechless. My concerns - - My
19 concerns are for my property, as far as potential
20 vandalism that might occur on it. I have a car
21 facility, both used cars and repairs. And my
22 concern is that after hours, and a bigger concern
23 is for the people in the neighborhood that - -
24 that they don't have the rowdiness and the
25 parking issues. And I'm just here more, I think,

00034

1 to support them than I am myself.

2 CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: Thank you. Any
3 questions of this witness? Do you have any
4 questions?

5 MR. BANGERT: No, Mr. Chairman.

6 CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: Thank you. Next
7 witness, please.

8 THE WITNESS: Morning. I'm Tony Del
9 Santo, and I live on 74th and Florist Avenue.
10 I'm about two blocks away.

11 CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: Okay.

12 THE WITNESS: And previously there was
13 a bowling alley right across the street there,
14 and that shut down seven, eight years ago. And
15 it was just a haven for crime. Anybody in the
16 neighborhood, remembers there was people plugged
17 in there left and right, lots of shootouts. When
18 the place shut down, cruising was a problem. I
19 mean, it was just one catastrophe after another.
20 And I think it would be breeding grounds to open
21 up a tavern in this area again.

22 CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: Thank you.

23 Questions of this witness? Do you have any
24 questions?

25 MR. BANGERT: No, Mr. Chairman.

00035

1 CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: Okay. Next person
2 to testify, please.

3 THE WITNESS: Good morning. My name is
4 Sharon Sanders, and I live at 5708 North 76th
5 Street in Milwaukee. My zipcode is 53218. I
6 have been there for 22 years, this August. And I
7 have really seen that neighborhood change, you
8 know. It's really changed. And I just don't
9 feel that having a tavern there is going to
10 increase the livelihood of the people living
11 there. It would really be a detriment with the
12 potential crime that's going to start with the
13 people in the tavern arguing, drinking, smoking,
14 the violence that could occur. I'm just not for
15 it. And also, the people that will be in the
16 neighborhoods at all times of the day and all
17 times of the night.

18 And I'm certainly concerned about the
19 night traffic, because I work second shift. And
20 I get home at, you know, 11:30, 12 o'clock at
21 night. And you have people in the alleys and
22 walking around, and I - - I'm just not for it.
23 About three years ago my son was robbed at gun
24 point coming home at night. Someone stole his
25 car. And with the tavern being there, that's

00036

1 just really going to increase violence in the
2 neighborhood. And I'm not against Ms. Thomas
3 trying to be an entrepreneur and start up her own
4 business, but I just don't want it in my
5 neighborhood. I have worked too hard and too
6 long. And I just want some peace.

7 CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: Thank you for your
8 testimony. Are there any questions of this
9 witness? Counselor, any questions?

10 MR. BANGERT: No, Mr. Chairman.

11 CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: Okay. Next person
12 to testify, please.

13 THE WITNESS: Good morning. My name is
14 Gloria Norwood. Tamara is trying to be a black
15 entrepreneur. I cannot condemn her for this.
16 She is going to open up a diner. Consumption of
17 alcohol will be to a limit. And I don't see no
18 one intoxicated trying to destroy no property. I
19 been living in a beautiful neighborhood, and I
20 don't want to destroy it either. So I'm going to
21 really go for this, and give her an opportunity.
22 She's a young person trying to raise five kids,
23 and she needs some money to raise these children.
24 I want everybody to look at it in a positive
25 manner, and give her an opportunity to do this.

00037

1 And if you foresee that she cannot work with it,
2 you can close her down.

3 CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: Thank you for your
4 testimony. What's your address, ma'am?

5 THE WITNESS: 5718 North 74th Street.
6 Live over there 20 some years.

7 CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: Next witness?
8 Okay. We've - - We've exhausted the - - the
9 public testimony here. Thank you.

10 MR. BANGERT: Excuse me. There is one
11 witness, Mister - - Mr. Sam Seward is the
12 landlord, who also is a business owner in the
13 area.

14 CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: Sam, we swore you
15 in, right?

16 THE WITNESS: Yes.

17 CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: Okay. Name and
18 address for the record, please.

19 THE WITNESS: Sam Seward, 8920 North
20 Elm Parkway, Milwaukee, Wisconsin. My business
21 partner and I own the building that Jimbo's and
22 the print shop were in, and also, my corporation
23 owns the Subway restaurant across the street.

24 CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: Okay.

25 THE WITNESS: And we would be able to

00038

1 use the front portion of that Subway lot for
2 overflow parking for - - for the restaurant if it
3 were necessary. The other thing is from what I
4 know from having spoke with Jimbo many times over
5 the years, there never was a problem with trash
6 or anything like that from the restaurant
7 operation into the area. It would actually come
8 from the Labor Ready or whatever day labor
9 franchises next door causing problems for them.
10 And also, ongoing minor theft problems with his
11 equipment in the - - in the area there. So if
12 there's been negative impacts in the past, it's
13 been in the other direction. It's been from
14 people who were in the neighborhood and familiar
15 with - - with the operation and actually preyed
16 on Jimbo's business.

17 CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: Thank you. Any
18 questions of this witness? Alderman Davis.

19 ALDERMAN DAVIS: Mr. Chairman, for - -
20 for the owner of the Subway. Can - - Can he give
21 an explanation or a description on where Subway
22 is at, since 76th Street is a State Highway.

23 THE WITNESS: Okay. It's directly
24 across the street. The address there is 5959
25 North 76th. This property is 5950 through 54

00039

1 North 76th.

2 ALDERMAN DAVIS: Mr. Chairman.

3 CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: Alderman Davis.

4 ALDERMAN DAVIS: That's not directly
5 across the street. Because directly across the
6 street is the child care facility. The Subway is
7 just to the south of there. So, patrons have to
8 walk to the crosswalk, cross 76th Street and
9 Florist and cross and come back to the car
10 dealership to get to the establishment. My
11 concern is the safety issue, since 76th Street is
12 a State Highway, for patrons to park across the
13 street, and the also potential of jaywalking
14 across a State Highway. Thank you.

15 CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: Thank you.

16 THE WITNESS: If I could make a
17 comment.

18 CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: Go ahead.

19 THE WITNESS: If you go out the front
20 door of Jimbo's and look west, directly across
21 the street is, in fact, it corners on the - - the
22 5959 corners on the street that comes out to the
23 same curb cut, it goes directly into Jimbo's
24 parking lot.

25 CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: I understand. I

00040

1 have a clear picture of it. Any other questions
2 of this witness. Mr. Bangert?

3 MR. BANGERT: Just, Mr. Seward, were
4 you the, along with your business partner, the
5 owner of the Jimbo's property during the time
6 Jimbo's was running as a business?

7 THE WITNESS: Yes.

8 MR. BANGERT: And for how long were you
9 the owner?

10 THE WITNESS: Approximately ten years.
11 I'd have to look and see, but we purchased the
12 property approximately ten years ago. It was
13 originally Jimbo's and Steve's Bike Shop, and
14 then we redid the - - the, what was the bike
15 shop, and then the Minuteman Press was in there
16 for about eight years. And Jimbo's closed last
17 September.

18 MR. BANGERT: And how was the parking
19 situation? How was that handled during the time
20 that Jimbo's was in operation?

21 THE WITNESS: They used the street
22 parking in front. There is limited parking.
23 There's a small parking lot to the south of the
24 building, between the building and the end of the
25 - - the shopping center, the strip mall. And

00041

1 Jimbo had told me that they had an informal
2 agreement with the operators of the strip mall.
3 It was never formalized, to the best of my
4 knowledge. And as far as I know, there were no
5 problems. So I think whatever might - - whatever
6 might happen here would really depend on the
7 scale of the operation. You know, and that - -
8 As I understand from the - - the modified plans,
9 it really wouldn't be that different from what
10 was there.

11 I guess I would have a general question
12 for the people that came and spoke and that would
13 be - -

14 CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: Well, you can't
15 - - You can't - - You can't actually do that.
16 Because then we would have to recall everybody up
17 here to answer that. So I don't mean to be
18 disrespectful to you, but - -

19 THE WITNESS: No. I understand.

20 CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: Yeah. Thank you.

21 MR. SCHRIMPF: Mr. Chairman.

22 CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: Mr. Schrimpf.

23 MR. SCHRIMPF: Quick question for Ms.

24 Barron. When this place was Jimbo's, did it have
25 a regular Class "B" or did it have a Malt Class

00042

1 "B"?
2 MS. BARRON: It had a regular Class "B"
3 tavern.
4 MR. SCHRIMPF: Regular Class "B".
5 Okay.
6 MS. BARRON: Yes.
7 MR. SCHRIMPF: That's all I have.
8 CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: Counselor, do you
9 wish to give us a closing - - closing statement
10 here before - -
11 MR. BANGERT: Yes, just a brief one.
12 CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: Go ahead.
13 MR. BANGERT: Mr. Chairman, I don't
14 know if you'd like. I believe that Alderman
15 Davis, I believe, raised the issue of - - wanted
16 an explanation regarding the registered agent.
17 CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: Yes.
18 MR. BANGERT: And the names. And I'll
19 let Ms. Norwood give that explanation.
20 THE APPLICANT: Tamara Maria Owens is
21 my married name. I usually use my single name,
22 or my maiden name, just because I've established
23 credit in it, and I have done most of my things
24 in Tamara Norwood-Thomas. And that's the reason
25 being. That's the only difference. But I am - -

00043

1 I do use both. I do have accounts in both. It's
2 not - - It's not uncommon for me to use both
3 names.

4 CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: Okay. Thank you.
5 Go ahead.

6 MR. BANGERT: Mr. Chairman and
7 committee, my comments are simply that from
8 listening to the neighborhood objections, you
9 know, I think it's clear that there was, even
10 though, to my knowledge, there were not any large
11 scale objections during the time that the Jimbo's
12 business was operating. At the same time, it's
13 clear that many of the neighbors and the
14 neighborhood as a whole, possibly relished the
15 fact that there was no longer a business
16 operating in that location.

17 What the Applicant, Ms. Norwood, has in
18 mind, I think is clear not that it is primarily a
19 sit-down restaurant. There is a small bar that's
20 a part of that, but this is not the - - The
21 operation that's been described today is not, I
22 don't believe, a last minute switch, as evidenced
23 by the fact that she, after meeting with the
24 neighborhood groups and after listening to some
25 of their concerns, she withdrew those

00044

1 objectionable parts of - - of her original
2 application regarding dancing permit and the
3 billiards hall permit. So I - - I think it's
4 clear that - - that Ms. Norwood has tried to
5 conform to the - - the desires of the
6 neighborhood and - - and that's really what she's
7 asking. She just is looking for an opportunity
8 to try to make a business work.

9 You know, it's understandable that
10 there is some question regarding how it's going
11 to work. There are questions regarding how
12 trustworthy the applicant is. What she's asking
13 for is an opportunity, and I see, you know, I - -
14 From my review, it looks to me like the plans
15 that Ms. Norwood has - - has indicated that she
16 has for her business are in total conformity with
17 the northwest side area plan of encouraging - -
18 encouraging business and particularly sit-down
19 restaurants along that - - what's clearly a major
20 commercial corridor. The property has been
21 sitting vacant now for, it sounds like, eight
22 months at least. And I feel that from what Ms.
23 Norwood has presented that - - that it would be
24 advantageous for the northwest side area, but
25 also, for that immediate neighborhood to give her

00045

1 an opportunity to operate in conformance with the
2 more limited plans that she's indicated that she
3 has at this point.

4 CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: Thank you.
5 Alderman Davis, in closing.

6 ALDERMAN DAVIS: Thank you, Mr.
7 Chairman. Members of the committee. First of
8 all, let me put this on the record. I think the
9 application is questionable. I think that had I
10 not or had not had the opportunity to work with
11 community members to disclose of what some of my
12 - - some of my constituents raised is that can
13 she be trusted. I have to make sure that in a
14 business relationship, as an Alderman, that if I
15 make a call to that particular establishment,
16 that I get measurable results. If, in fact, it
17 impacts the community, if it impacts the safety,
18 if it impacts the children of the district in
19 which I represent. The intent is clear. She
20 came before this committee requesting something
21 other than what is before us now. And I set, you
22 know, I gave her the opportunity to disclose what
23 her intentions were to the neighbors - - the
24 neighbors in the district. I went far beyond and
25 spent a lot of nights and weekends making sure

00046

1 that she talked to constituents in the district.
2 The Subway parking across the street,
3 that is just unrealistic. Because now, it's
4 going to thrust in - - in the district in which I
5 represent, folks crossing in the middle of 76th
6 Street, coming back and forth, to this particular
7 establishment. But yet, still, she can't secure
8 a written agreement with the property owner next
9 door. And I'll tell you the reason why. Because
10 that property owner doesn't want to assume
11 liability for anything that's going to happen on
12 his property. And I made that very clear. I
13 need to hold somebody accountable for loitering
14 and littering from this particular establishment.
15 And finally, I've had to deal from public wire -
16 - city owned wires in that area. Now, I know
17 that - - that Sergeant Ulickey brought up a past
18 conviction, and that conviction was the
19 distribution of cocaine. And I am very much
20 concerned that with that particular conviction
21 and with the questionable application that is
22 here right now, I believe that this is an
23 applicant that truly would not represent the
24 community's best interest. So I would hope that
25 the committee would take a position of not

00047

1 granting this license. The attorney said that
2 this issue or this property has been vacant for
3 eight months. I have an AT&T building that was
4 vacant for three years, and right now it has 2.3
5 million dollars worth of investment in there
6 that's supporting the community. So sometimes,
7 as alderman, we have to make sure that we
8 represent and be patient to make sure the best
9 use of a property will come before us. So I
10 would hope that the committee would not support
11 the granting of this license. Thank you.

12 CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: Alderman Puente
13 moves to make the entire police report part of
14 the permanent record in this hearing. Hearing no
15 objections, so ordered. And with that, this
16 matter is in committee.

17 ALDERMAN BOHL: Mr. Chairman.

18 CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: Alderman Bohl.

19 ALDERMAN BOHL: At this time I would
20 move to deny based on neighborhood objections to
21 - - to loud music, noise, parking, traffic
22 problems, cruising and other conduct detrimental
23 to the health, safety and welfare of the
24 neighborhood.

25 CHAIRMAN WITKOWIAK: Motion by Alderman

00048

1 Bohl is to recommend denial based on neighborhood
2 objections of loitering, littering, loud music,
3 noise, traffic, parking problems, cruising and
4 other criminal activity. Is there any discussion
5 on the motion? Are there any objections to the
6 motion? Hearing none, so ordered. I want to
7 thank everybody who came down and testified
8 today.

* * * * *

00049

1

2

STATE OF WISCONSIN)

3

)

MILWAUKEE COUNTY)

4

5 I, TERESE M. SCHIEBENES, of Milwaukee
6 Reporters Associated, Inc., 5124 West Blue Mound Road,
7 Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53208, certify that the foregoing
8 proceedings was transcribed under my direction for the
9 license of FRANK'S PLACE that came before the Licenses
10 Committee.

8

9

10

TERESE M. SCHIEBENES
Court Reporter

11

12

13

14 Dated this day of October, 2007.

15

